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Date: 141" August, 2024

To,

vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited
101, SMC Square, 441 Khopat,

LBS Marg, Thane (West),

Maharashtra, India, 400601

Dear Sir/Madam,

Ref: Independent Auditor’s Report (“Report”) under The Companies Act, 2013 on Financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

Sub: Communication on generation of Unique Documentation |dentification Number (UDIN) after
the date of signing of Report.

We would like to draw your attention that UDIN for Report for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
has been generated subsequent to our signing of Report, the details of which are as follows:

Type of Report Date of Generation

Independent Auditors

UDIN : Date of Signing

Report on Financial 24111636BKCSSK1770 08-08-2024 14-08-2024

statements for FY 2023-24

Kindly disseminate this information to your stakeholders and produce this letter on every
submission of such Report and / or Annexures to such report to any third parties to enable them to
check authenticity of such documents.

Thanking you.

Yours faithfully,

For GBCA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 103142W / W100292

ogesh R. Amal
Partner
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vasudha Waste Treatment Private
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement
of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and the
statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to financial statements, including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in
the manner sO required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, and its Profit, Total
Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and its cash flow for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of Financial Statements in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these réquirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon (“Other
Information”)

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for other information. The other information
comprises Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report and such other disclosure related

xformation but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act,
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the IND AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

“frauds and other irregularities; selection of appropriate accounting software for ensuring compliance
with applicable laws and regulations including those related to retention of audit log; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless board of directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The company’s board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issué aﬁ auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
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that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are -appropriate in the circumstances., Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. :

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.,

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the auditand significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the comparative figures reported for the period ended 315t March, 2023 in
the financial statements/information of the Company whose financial statements/information
reflect total assets of Rs. 912.57 (in Millions) as at 31°* March, 2023 and the total revenue of Rs.
669.11 (in Millions) for the year ended on that date, as considered in the financial statements. The
financial statements/information of such period have been audited by the previous auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of such period, is based solely on the report of such previous auditors.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013,
we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Order to the extent applicable.

2. As required by the section 143 (3) of the Act,'we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of

our knowledge and beliefs were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them
to be satisfactory.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required b'y law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in
paragraph (f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (as amended).

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account. ' e "

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the IND AS specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 315t March, 2024, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 315
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March, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2) of section 164 of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
"Annexure B"; and our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy & operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected there
with are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us,
the Company being a private limited company, provisions of section 197 of the Act are not
applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position as at 31°% March, 2024. (Refer Note 39 of Financial Statement)

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(jes),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 111636

0 8 AUG 2024

Date;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

(c)

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend orinvest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. There were no dividends declared and / or paid during the year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting

software (Tally Prime Edit log) for maintaining books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
except that the Company is in the process of implementing feature of recording audit trail
at database level to log any direct changes for the accounting software used for
maintaining the books of accounts.

Based on our procedures performed for the accounting software, we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

For GB C A & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 103142W / W100292

7

ogesh Amal
Partner
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report to the Members of Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited of
even date)

i

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(A) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets,

(B) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
intangible assets.

According to the information and explanaticns given to us, Property, Plant and Equipment
have been physically verified by the management at regular intervais and no material
discrepancies were found on such verification. In our opinion, the intervals for
verification are reasonable having regard the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued
any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible
assets during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder. '

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, inventories have been

physically verified at reasonable intervals by the management. In our opinion, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is reasonable. According to
information and explanation given to us, no discrepancies have been noticed on physical
verification of inventory.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of %5 crore, in aggregate, at any point of time
during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable

11,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not provided
any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security to
any entity during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable. ‘ '

(d)According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, there is ho amount overdue of loans and advances in the
nature of loans granted by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(d) of the
Order is not applicable.

1

(e)According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, no loans or advances in the nature of loan granted which has
fallen due during the year, have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle
the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment, Accordingly, reporting under clausé 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

9|Page

(5]




Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited Financial Year 2023-24

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures

conducted by us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of
the Act, with respect to loans and advances granted, guarantees and securities provided and
investments made by the Company during the year. :

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

Vi,

vii.

has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public
within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Sections
73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
for the products manufactured by it (and/or services provided by it). Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities. -

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31
March, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to uS, there are no dues outstanding of

VAT, GST, income tax, custom duty, wealth tax, service tax and excise duty, which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii.According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year,
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ix.

(a)

(b)

(f)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of lcans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, term loans
availed by the Company were applied by the Company during the year for the purposes
for which the loans were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and the
procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements
of the Company, we report that funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, have
not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix){e) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of

securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies as defined in

Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable. '

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year.
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xi.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and based on examination of the books and records of the
Company and according to the information and explanations given to us, considering the
principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) No report under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by us
in Form ADT 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014
with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards.

xiv.In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies
Act 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable

xv.According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xv) of the Order is
not applicable.

xvi.In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-iA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order
is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash loss during the financial year ended on that date and

immediately preceding financial years. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvii) of the Order
is not applicable.
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xviii.There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and no issues, objections
or concerns are raised by the outgoing auditors.

xix.According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our exarmination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
does not meet the eligibility criteria for CSR Compliance given in section 135(1) of the
Companies Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For G B C A & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 103142W / W100292

Yogésh Amal -

Partner )
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 111636

Date: J 8 AUG 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the Members of Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Vasudha Waste
Treatment Private Limited (“the Company”) for the period ended March 31, 2024, in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Opinion

Commensurate to the size and nature of the business, In our opinion, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively for the period
ended March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financials Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the nt applicable to an audit of internal
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financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thata material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. '

Commensurate to the size and nature of the business, we believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,

use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For G B C A & Associates LLP
ﬁChartered Accountants

O

~~% Birm Registration No.: 103142W / W100292

Partner
Membership No.: 111636

Place: Mumbai

P08 AUG 2024
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Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
TCIN: US0000MH2014PTC255305
(Currency: lndianrRuperesi_n_Mil!ior)s)

ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Progerty, plant and equipment 5 3413 34,15
(b} Right-of-use asset 6 5.82 569
(c) Capital Work-in-Progress 7 22,11 -
(d) Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivahles 8 196.39 178.45
(i) Orher financial assets g 51.83 1.45
(h) Deferred tax assets (Net) 37
(e) Income tax assets (Net) 10 12,33 1402
(f) Other Non - Current Assets 11 4.29 0.04
Total Non-Current Assets 327.61 233.80

2 " Current assets

(a) Inventories 12 104.77 10101
{b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivahles 13 477.27 451.95

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 14 6.42 12.10

{iii) Other Bank Balances 15 5.58 52.28

{c)  Other Current Assets 16 i8.19 61.42

o Total Current Assets 613.25 678.76

Fotal Assets 540 .85 912.57

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 17 1000 10.00
(b)  Other equity 18 75.30 42 65
Total equity 85.30 52.65

Liahilities
1 Non- Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitias

(i) Barrowings 19 368.45 42500

(i) Lease liahilities 20 8.46 5.47

{b) Provisions 21 0.33 0.13
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 37 2530 14568
Total non-current liabilities 400 54 45528

2 Current liabilities
(3) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 22 43398 15001
(ii) Leaze liabilities 23 0B8 0.93
(iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micre and small enterprises 24 1.55 -
N Total outstanding dues of creditors other than mic ro and small
enlerprisgs 24 836 189.31
{iv) Other financial liahilities 25 2.60 4807
(b} Other current liahilities 26 7.64 16.31
{c) Provisions 27 000 0.00
(d) Current tax liabilities 28 - (0.00)
Total current liabilities 45501 404 63
Total liabilities 855.55 855.52
Total equity and liabilities 940.85 912,57

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even dale attached
For G B C A & Assaciates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited

FRN: 103142W / W100292 N
//l."\
L

&op
L/ésh R. Amal

Partner

Mermbership No. 111636
Place: Mumbai

Date: 08 082024

aketchandrasingh

Shivaji D Desai
Pratapsingh Dhandhoriya vaji Dada Desai

Director Director
DIN: 0RE73114 DIN: G7259001




Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN:-U90000MH2014PTC255305
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Mil_lia_:ls)

| Income
Revenue from operations
Qther income
Total income

Il Expenses
Project Cost
Changes in invenlories
Employee beneflits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses
Total expenses

Il Profit before tax

IV Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

Total tax expense

v Profit after Tax

VI Other comprehensive income (OCI)
a) [Items that will not be reciassified to profit or loss
i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities/asset

ii) -Income taxes related to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive income
VIl Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per share face value of 10 each fully paid up

Basic earnings per share (%)
Diluted earnings per share (%)

29
30

31
32
33
34
35
36

37
37

38
38

256.23 666.62
3.40 2.49
259.63 669.11
91.19 565.37
(3.76) (3.78)
12.97 717
66.48 53.76
5.41 484
44,03 4367
216.33 671.03
43.30 (1.92)
= 003
10,62 (12.10)
10.62 (12.07)
32,69 10.15
(0.03) =
(0.03) -
32.65 10.15
32,69 10.15
32.69 10.15

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For G B C A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 103142W / W100252

/

ogesh R, Amal

rartner

Membership No. 111636
Plare: Mumbai

Date: 08.08 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited

A Y
/‘:‘
)

etchandrasingh

s
Pratapsingh Dhandhoriya Shivaji Dada Desal

Director Director
DIN: 06873114 DIN: 07292001



Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

CiN: U90000MH2014PTC255305
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

(A) Equity share capital

Balance as at April 01, 2023 10,00,000 10.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -

Balance as at March 31, 2024 10,00,000 10.00
Balance as at April 01, 2022 10,00,000 10 00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - =

Balance as at March 31, 2023 10,00,000 10.00

(B) Other equity

Balance as at April 01, 2023 42.65 - 42.65
Profit for the year 32.69 - 32.69
Re-measurement gain/(loss) of defined benefit plans (net of tax) - (0.03) (0.03)
Total other comprehensive income for the year 75.33 (0.03) 75.30
__ —lance as at March 31, 2024 75.33 (0.03) 75.30
Balance as at April 01, 2022 32.49 - 32.49
Profit for the year 10.15 - 10.15
Total other comprehensive income for the year 42.65 - 42.65
Balance as at March 31, 2023 42.65 - 42.65

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For G B C A & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 103142W / W100292

L)dﬁesh R. Amal

Partier

Membership No. 111636
Place: Mumbai

Date: 02.08.2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directaors
Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited

Saketchandrasingh

Pratapsingh Dhandhoriya

Director
DIN: 06873114

L3N
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LY

AN

Shivaji Dada Desai

Director
DIN: 07295001




- Cash-EIT:;vs fruTn uperaﬁng activities

Vasudha Waste Treatiment Private Limited
statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

CiIN: US0000MH2014PTC255305
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

Profit for the year before tax
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Finance costs

Interest income on Term deposit

Operating profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments :

(Decrease)/ increase in other current liabiiities
(Decrease)/ increase in trade payables
(Decrease)/ increase in other financial liabilities
(Decrease)/ increase in provisions

Decrease/ (increase) in inventories

Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/ (increase) in other financial gssets
Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets
Decrease/ (increase) in non-current assels
Cash generated from operations

Income taxes patd (net of refunds)

Net cash from operating activities {A)

Cash flows from investing activities

payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Capital Work in Progress

Investments in fixed deposits (Net)

Interast received on fixed deposits

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Procesds from long-term borrowings (Net)

Proceeds from short-term borrowings (Net)

Interest paid on long-term borrowings

Interest paid on shart-term borrowings

Repayment of lease liahility

Interest paid on lease liability

Net cash flow used in financing activities (C)

Net increase{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year

" Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 14)

Components of Cash and cash equivalents -
Cash in hand

Balances with bank

Bank Overdraft

Total cash and cash equivaients (refer note 14)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For G B C A & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 103142W / W100292

¢~
2

Partner

Membership No. 111636
Place: Mumbai

Date: 0R 08.2024

4330 (1.92)
5.41 484
66.48 53.76
(2.94) (1.80)
112.26 54.87
(867) 1364
(179.41) 18260
(45.47) 4756
017 0.14
(3.76) (3.78)
(43.27) (200.17)
(50.47) 1663
42.23 (25.20)
(4.25) 0.00
(180.65) 92.30
1.09 4.47
(179.57) 96.77
(4.20) (29.90)
(22.11) :
46 69 (32.01)
2.94 180
23.32 (60.11)
(66 55) -
283.97 2988
(11.20) (52.57)
(54.15) {0.54)
{0.25) (0.34)
(1.25) {0.66)
150.57 (24.72)
(5.68) 11.94
12.10 0.16
6.42 12.10
6.42 12.10
6.42 12.10

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited

Dhandhoriya

Directar
DIN: 0273114

rasingh Pratapsingh

/\-1
.
an

Shivaji Dada Desai

Director
DIN: 07299001



Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN: US0000MH2014PTC255305
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

2.1

2.2

23

2.4

Company Overview

Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited (VWTPL) is a SPV company established on 26th May 2014 having its registered office situated at Thane. The
Company is engaged in the business of design, engineering, fabrication, procurement, equipment supply, erection & commissioning of Municipal Solid Waste
(MSW) Lreatment plants basad on different variants of PPP model such as Built Own Operate Transfer (BOOT), Design Built Finance Operate Transfer (DBFOT)
or cash contracts such as EPC and Annuity projects and it render all type of services in refation to treatment of municipal solid waste. It also carries out
operation and maintenance services of MSW plant, processing / trealing waste to separate recyclables, convert waste inlo sustainable energy, generating
campost, generaling Refused Derived Fuel and remediation/ bio mining of legacy waste dumpsites,

Basis for Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS") as prescribed under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accousting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

Statement of Compliance

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS") notified under the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 read with
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. In addition, the guidance
notesfannouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl) are also appiied excepl if compliance with other statutory
promulgations require a different treatment. These financials statements have been approved by the Board of Directars at their meeting held on 08 August,
2024.

Basis of accounting and preparation and presentation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which are measured on an alternative
basis on each reporting date:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value {refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabifity in an orderly transaction betwsen market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liahility, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characleristics inlo
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date,

In addition, for financial reporting purpeoses, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degiee to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabiiities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

Functional & Presentation Currency
The financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. All values are rounded to the nearest Millions {INR 000,000), unless otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates and Judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principies of Ind AS requires the management of the
Company to make estimates assumptions and judgments that affect the reporied balances of assets and liabiiities, disciosures of contingent liabilities as at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates considering different assumptions and conditions. Estimates and underlying 2ssumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Impact on
arcount of revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. The following
are the critical estimatas, assumptions and judgements that the management have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and
that have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the finandial statements:

{a) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment: ;

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
after determining an estimale of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of
Company's assets are determined by the Management at the lime the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically.

(b) Empioyee benefits:

Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, employee benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are
reviewed at each reporting date.




Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

- CIN: US0000MH2014PTC255305

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)
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(c) Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets

The Company uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rulings in the areas of revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances which is exercised
while determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement to reassess the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

(d) Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligations. These provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. The
Company uses significant judgements to disclose contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

(e) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

(f) Allowance for credit losses on receivables

The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to reflect current and estimated future economic
conditions. The Company considered current and anticipated future economic conditions relating to industries the Company deals with and the countries
where it operates.

(g) Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre- tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share price for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current
The Operating Cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisitions of the assets for processing and their realisation in cash & cash equivalents. The
company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current and non current classification of assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:
(i) It is expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or
(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
(i) It is expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(iv) The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period,
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

(i) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

(i) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms
of a liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current,
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3.2

3.3

Material accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the Financials Statements.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from operations:

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer for an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration. Revenue excludes taxes collected from
customers on behalf of the government. Any amount receivable from customer are recognized as revenue at the point in time when control of the goods
sold are transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Recognition of Dividend Income, Interest income or expense

Interest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortized cost of the financial liability

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis,

Other income

Interest income from other financial assets is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly
attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes professional fees related to the acquisition of PPE and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accardance with the
Company’s accounting policy.

Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into use such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in

which the costs are incurred.
Subsequent costs are included in the assets’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they were incurred.
If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of PPE,

Capital work in Progress:

Expenditure during construction period (including financing cost related to borrowed funds for construction or acquisition of qualifying PPE if any) is
included under Capital Work-in-Progress, and the same is allocated to the respective PPE on the completion of their construction. Advances given towards
acquisition or construction of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other non-current Assets”

Depreciation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is provided using written down value method, so as to
write off the cost of the assets less their residual values over their useful fives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets
where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end
to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, The estimated useful life and residual values are also
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis. In respect of
additions to /deletions from the PPE, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion of the Assets,

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of a Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Leases

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset and the Company has substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the right of use asset shall comprise of the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct
costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation/amortisation,

accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated/amortised using the
straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Company uses incremental borrowing rate,

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The Company, as a lessor, classifies a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease. Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

Financial Instruments

i)  Recognition and initial measurement

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets
and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are
adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

i) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
and selling financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately
recognised in statement of profit and loss. This includes all derivative financial assets (see Note 43).

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

iii) Derecognition

a) Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual

rights to receive the cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows to one or more recipient.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company
retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

b) Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss.
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Impalrment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any impairment. Impairment loss, if
any, is provided to the extent, the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price
and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its
disposal at the end of its useful life. Impalrment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss or against revaluation surplus, where applicable. If at
the balance sheet date there is an indication that previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is
reflected at the recoverable amount subject to maximum of depreciated historical cost.

i)  Non-derivative financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of all financial assets subsequent to initial
recognition other than financial assets measured at fair valued through profit and loss (FVTPL). For Trade Receivables the Company applies ‘simplified
approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to
determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed. For other financial assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no
significant increase in credit risk since its initial recognition. If there is significant increase in credit risk since its initial recognition full lifetime ECL is used.
The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii) Impairment of non-financial Asset

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than inventories, contract assets and deferred tax
assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset or Cash Generating
Unit (CGU) is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belong. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash

inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
The recoverable amount of an individual asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is based on the

estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are valued after providing for obsolescence, as under:

a) Raw materials, components, stores and spares at lower of cost or net realisable value, However, these items are considered to be realisable at cost if the
finished products in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost.

b) Work-in-progress and Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of raw materials, cost of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Cost Is determined on weighted average basis which includes expenditure incurred for acquiring inventories like purchase price, import duties, taxes (net of
tax credit) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. Assessment of net realisable value is made in each subsequent period and when the circumstances that previously caused
inventories to be written-down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value because of changed
economic circumstances, the write-down, if any, in the past period is reversed to the extent of the original amount written-down so that the resultant
carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realisable value.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because
itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability. 3

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, When an inflow of economic benefits is
probable, contingent asset are disclosed in the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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3.9

3.10

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund and gratuity fund.

(i) Defined Contribution Plan:

The Company's contributions towards provident fund is defined contribution scheme. The Compay's contribution paid/payable under the schemes is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

ii) Short-Term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as
salaries, wages, and short term compensated absences, etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia, if any are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in
the period in which the employee renders the related service.

iii) Defined benefit plan:

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation at each balance sheet date by an
independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the
obligation under defined benefit plans are based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the calculation results
in a benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognized actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value
of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of other comprehensive income.

Taxation

The tax expenses comprise of current tax and deferred income tax charge or credit. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income or in Equity. In which case, the tax s also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
or Equity, respectively.

Current Tax

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantivelv enacted bv the reporting date.

Deferred Tax

- Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the company’s financial statements and the

corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the
Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses are recognised and carried forward to the extent of available taxable temporary
differences or where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realised.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets refiects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at
the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or in equity, is recorded along with the tax as
applicable.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis,
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3.11

3.12

3.13

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash, cheque in hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year and equity shares to be issued on conversion of mandatorily convertible instruments. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events such as bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to
existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities

of the Company are segregated.
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash, cheque in hand, cash at banks and bank deposits with original maturity of three

manths or less.

Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such
events Is adjusted with financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

Recent pronouncement
There are no standards of accounting or any addendum thereto, prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
which are issued and not effective as at March 31, 2024.
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6 Right-of-use asset

Right-of-Use Assets related to leased properties that do not meet the definition of investment property are presented as property, plant and

equipment
Particular Buildings Total
1. Gross Block
Balance as at April 01, 2022 7.76 7.76
Additions - =
Deletion = =
Balance as at April 01, 2023 7.76 7.76
Additions 1.20 1.20
Deletion B -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 8.96 8.96
Balance as at April 01, 2022 1.03 1.03
Additions 1.03 1.03
Deletion - -
Balance as at April 01, 2023 2.07 2.07
Additions 1.07 1.07
Deletion - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3.14 3.14
Net Block (I-11) - -
Balance as at April 01, 2023 5.69 5.69
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5.82 5.82
7 Capital Work-in-Progress March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance . -
Add: Expenditure during the year 2211 -
Less: Capitalisation/Adjustments during the year - -
Closing Balance 22,11 -

Ageing schedule of capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2024

Ageing as on March 31, 2024

Particulars M h
Less than 1 Year 1-2Years 2 -3 Years REe e Total
Years
Projects in Progress 22.11 - - - 22,11
Total 22.11 - - - 22.11

There are no capital work-in-progress whose completion is overdue compared to its original plan.
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9

10

11

12

Non - Current Assets - Financial assets - Others

Financial assets at amortised cost

Bank Deposits with more than twelve months maturity*
Security deposits

*Refer Note 15 for information about lien on fixed deposits.

Non - Current Asset - Income tax assets (Net)

Advance income taxes (Net off provisions)*

*Net of provision as on Mar 31, 2024 - Nil (Mar 31, 2023 - Nil)
Non - current assets - Others

Capital advances
Prepaid expenses

Current Assets - Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)
Work in Progress

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

50.78 -
1.15 1.45
51.93 1.45
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
12.93 14.02
12.93 14.02

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

3.87 -
0.42 0.04
4.29 0.04

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

104,77

101.01

104.77

101.01
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14 Current Assets - Financial Assets - Cash & cash equivalents March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks:
-On current account 6.42 12.10
6.42 12.10
15 Current Assets - Financial Assets - Other bank balances March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deposits with banks* 5.59 52.28
5.59 52.28
*Note: Fixed deposit is in lien with bank term loan from Axis Bank of Rs. 50 Mn. as on March 31, 2024
16 Other current assets March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance with government authorities 14.40 4484
Advance to suppliers p 0.09 12.94
Prepaid expenses 4,70 3.64
19.19 61.42
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17 Share capital

Share Capital

March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Authorized

15,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 15,00,000) equity shares of Rs, 10 each 15.00 15.00
15.00 15.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up
10,00,000 (March 31, 2023; 10,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 10.00 10.00
10.00 10.00

(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
III-I:-IIUtH Lo 1] Amount I‘I.I:-IIUEI [*1] Amcunt
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,00,000 10.00 10,00,000 10.00
Add: Issuance and allotment of shares - - - -
Less: cancellation of shares - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,00,000 10.00 10,00,000 10.00

(b) Particulars of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 "

— ——— % Change during

Name of the sharehalder Number of % of holding in Number of % of holding in the year

shares the class shares the class
SFC Environmental Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 7,40,000 74.00% 7,40,000 74.00% 0.00%
SMC Infrastructures Private Limited 2,60,000 26,00% 2,60,000 26.00% 0.00%
10,00,000 100.00% 10,00,000 100.00% 0.00%
(c) Shares held by promoters in the company
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Name of the Promoter Number of % of holding in Number of % of holding in

shares the class shares the class
SFC Environmental Technologjes Pvt. Ltd. 7,40,000 74.00% 7,40,000 74.00%
_ SMC Infrastructures Private Limited 2,60,000 26.00% 2,60,000 26.00%
10,00,000 100.00% 10,00,000 100.00%

(d) Shares held by holding company
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Name of the Shareholder Number of % of holding in Number of % of holding in
shares the class shares the class
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held by

SFC Environmental Technologies Pvt, Ltd. 7,40,000 74.00% 7,40,000 74.00%
7,40,000 74.00% 7,40,000 74.00%

(e) Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares
The company has only one class of Equity Shares having Face Value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote per share.
The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors are subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However no such preferential amount exists as at March 31,
2024, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Shareholders.

(f) During the Financial Year 2023-2024 the Company has not issued any shares to any of its director or other person. The company has not allotted any
equity shares as bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2024 and also March 31, 2023. Further the company
has not bought back any equity shares during the aforesaid period.

(g) The company does not have any securities outstanding as at March 31, 2024
equity/preference shares,
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18

18A

18B

19

20

21

22

23

Other Equity
Movement in reserves and surplus
Retained earnings

Other comprehensive income (Acturial Gain/ Loss)
Total Reserve and Surplus

Retained earnings
Opening balance

Add: Profit for the year
Closing balance

* Nature and purpose of reserves
Retalned earnings are the profit that the company has earned till date.

Movement in Other Comprehensive Income (Acturial Gain/ Loss)
Opening balance

Add: Re-measurement loss on defined benefit liabilities (net of tax)
Closing balance

Total other equity

Non - Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

Loan from related parties*
Secured Borrowings (refer note 45)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
75.33 42.65
(0.03) -
75.30 42.65
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
42.65 32.49
32.69 10.15
75.33 42.65
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(0.03) =
(0.03) “
75.30 42.65
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- 435.00
368.45 -
368.45 435.00

* | pan is taken from related party which is repayable on demand carrying interest between 9% p.a. and 10% p.a.

Non - Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Leases

Long term maturities of lease obligations (refer note 46)

Non - Current Liabilities - Provisions
Provision for employee benefits :
Net defined benefit liability- Gratuity {refer note 40)

Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer Note 19)
Loan from related parties (refer Note 19)

Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Leases

Lease obligations (refer note 46)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
6.46 5.47
6.46 5.47

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.33 0.13
0.33 0.13

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

64.09 -

369.89 150.01
433.98 150.01

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.88 0.93
0.88 0.93
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24

Current Liabllitles - Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro and small enterprises

Refer note 41 for information about payables from refated party.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1.55 -
8.3 189.31
9.91 189.31

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said

MSMED Act are as follows :

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Principal amount due tc suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 1.44 -
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end -
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appainted day during the year - -
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyand the - -
appointed day during the year
Interest pald, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond - -
the appointed day during the year
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year - -
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act
Ageing schedule for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2024
particulars Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less thanl year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Undlisputed:
(i) MSME - 0.11 1.44 - - 1.55
(ii) Others - 3.06 5.30 - - 836
Disputed:
(1) MSME - - = ) . -
(i) Others - 5 - - - -
Total - 3.17 6.74 - - 9.91
Agelng schedule for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023:
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less thanl year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed:
(i) MSME - - : - . s
(ii) Others - - 18930 0.01 0.01 189.31
Disputed:
(i) MSME - - - - - -
(i) Others - - . . . )
Total - - 189.30 0.01 0.01 189.31
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25

26

27

28

Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Others

Interest accrued on loan to related parties
Creditors for expenses

Employee benefits payable

Payable to others

Current liabilities - Others
Statutory dues Payable

DS

TCS

ESIC

GLWF A

Provident fund payable
Accrued Expenses & provisions

ARepresents value less than Rs. 0.01 Mn.
Current Liablilities - Provisions

Provision for employee benefits :
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 40) A
ARepresents value less than Rs. 0.01 Mn.
Current tax liabilities

Provision for tax* #

*Refer note 10
ARepresents value less than Rs. 0.01 Mn.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- 47.31
1.33 =
0.76 0.55
0.51 0.21
2.60 48.07
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
6.14 8.55
0.01 =
0.01 0.01
0.00 0.00
0.21 0.12
1.26 7.62
7.64 16.31
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- -0.00
- (0.00)
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29

30

31

32

33

34

35

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customer
- Sale of Goods
- Sale of Services

Total (A)

Other operating revenues
- Interest on Annuity
- Scrap Sales recyclables, compost
- Supply of Electricity
- Other Operating Income
Total (B)

Total revenue from operations (A+B)

Other income

Interest income under the effective interest method on
-Term deposits

Interest on Income Tax Refund

Total other income

Project Cost

Contract Cost

Total Project Cost

Changes in inventories

Inventories at the beginning of the year
- Work in Progress

Less: Inventories at the end of the year

- Work in Progress

Netdecrease/ (increase)

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity (refer note 40)

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Interest expense on Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

- on loan from bank

- on Bank overdraft

- on loan from others
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Total finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use asset
Total depreclation and amortization expense

Year Ended Year Ended
Mar(_:h 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
164.26 666.56
164.26 666.56
87.18 -
1.68 0.06
2.97 -
0.13 -
91.97 0.06
256.23 666.62
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
294 1.80
0.46 0.69
3.40 2.49
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
91.19 565.37
91.19 565.37
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
101.01 97.23
101.01 97.23
104.77 101.01
104.77 101.01
3.76 (3.78)
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
10.09 5.23
0.94 0.70
0.17 0.14
1.77 1.10
12.97 7.17
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
11.20 B
- 0.54
54.15 52.57
1.14 0.66
66.48 53.76
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

4.23 3.80
1.18 1.03
5.41 4.84
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36

36.a)

Other expenses

Advertisement and marketing expensas
Bank Charges

Business Promotion Expenses

Donation

GST Expenses

Insurance

Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues
Legal and Professional Fees
Miscellaneous Expenses

payment to auditors (refer note 36.a)
Pest Control Charges

Power and fuel

Profession Tax- Company »

Rates & taxes

Rent

Repair and maintenance- Other
Security Charges

Travelling and Lodging Expenses

Waste Disposal Charges

Total other expenses

ARepresents value less than Rs. 0.01 Mn.
Payment to auditors
As auditor:

Statutory audit
Total

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

4,08 0.60
0.16 0.41

0.05 -

0.03 -

5.90 =
5.06 1.89
0.00 0.00
14,10 13.22
249 5.04
0.75 0.34

0.82 =
6.31 6.27

0.00 -
- 6.29
1.04 0.80
0.18 0.16

056 -
0.17 8.66

2.34 -
44,03 43.67

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

0.75 0.34
0.75 0.34
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37 Income Tax

(A) Current tax expense
- Current tax charge
- Deferred tax charge / (income)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

(B) Deferred tax relates to the following:

Deferred tax assets

On lease arrangements as per Ind AS 116
On Gratuity Provision

On Unabsorbed losses

Deferred tax liabilities

On property, plant and equipment

On unbilled trade receivables as per Ind AS 115
On Financial Instruments

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) (Net)

(€) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax from continuing operations
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate
Tax effect of:
_Short/{Excess) provision of income tax of earlier years
-Deferred tax impact
Others

Income tax expense
Effective tax Rate

Movement in deferred tax balances

MovementIn el e o ———

For the year ended March 31, 2024:

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a 0.03
1062 (12.10)
10.62 (12.07)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.40 0.18
0.08 -
2463 30.60
2511 30.77
0.54 0.54
49.43 44,91
0.44 -
50.41 45.46
(25.30) (14.68)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4330 (1.92)
10.90 (0.48)
- 0.03
10.62 (12.10)
{10.90) 0.48
10.62 [12.07)
24,52 628,16

Particulars

Opening Balance

Recognized in Profit or

Loss

Closing Balance

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset

On lease arrangements as per Ind A5 116 0.18 0.22 0.40

On Gratuity Provision - 0.08 0.08

On Unabsorbed losses 30.60 (5.96) 24.63
30.77 (5.66) 25.11

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

On property, plant and equipment 0.54 (0.01) 0.54

On unbilled trade receivables as per Ind AS 115 44.91 4.52 49.43

On Financial Instruments - 0.44 0.44
45.46 4.95 50.41

Net Deferred Tax Asset / (Liabilities) (14.68) (10.62) (25.30)

For the year ended March 31, 2023:

Particulars Opening Balance Recognlzt:si: Prant ey Closing Balance

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset

On lease arrangements as per Ind AS 116 0.13 0.05 0.18

On Unabsorbed losses - 30.60 3060

0.13 30.64 30,77

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

On property, plant and equipment 0.10 0.45 0.54

On unbilled trade receivables as per Ind AS 115 2682 18.09 44.91
26.91 18.54 45.46

Net Deferred Tax Asset / (Liabilities) (26.78) 12.10 (14.68)

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legall
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate t

Significant Management judgment is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred
recoverahility of deferred income tax assets, The recoverability of deferred income tax assetsis

which the relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences t

probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

y enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
o income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

income tax assets and liabilities and
based on estimates of taxable income in

o the extent thatitis
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38 Earnings per share ("EPS")
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS are calculated by dividing the Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by the welghted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all
the dilutive potential equity shares Into equity shares.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit for the year for basic and diluted EPS (A) 32.69 10.15
Weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding for calculating basic and diluted 10,00,000 10,00,000
EPS (B)
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Basic (Face value of Rs. 10 per share) (A/B) 32.69 10.15
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Diluted (Face value of Rs. 10 per share) (A/B) 32.69 10.15
39 Contingent liabilities and commitments March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Nil Nil

There are no contingent liabilities for the company as on March 31, 2024 and also as on March 31, 2023.

1l. Capital commitments ’ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Nil Nil

There are no capital commitments for the Company as on March 31, 2024 and also as on March 31, 2023.
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40 Employee benefits
() Defined Contribution Plans

Employer's Contribution to Provident fund and ESIC
During the year, the Company's contribution to Provident Fund and ESIC is recognized in the statement of Profit and loss
under the head Employee Benefit Expense.
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- Employer's contribution to Provident Fund and other Fund 0.94 0.70

(1) Defined benefit plans
Every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days of total gross salary last drawn for each completed year of
service. Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement or separation or death or permanent
disablement in terms of the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act.

Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1) Reconciliation in present value of obligation (PVO)
Defined benefit obligation:

Liability at the beginning of the year 0.14 -
Interest Cost 0.01 -
Current service cost 0.16 0.14
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss - Financial Assumptions 0.01 -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss - Experience 0.02 -
Liability at the end of the year 0.33 0.14

Il) Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss:

Current service cost 0.16 0.14
Net Interest costs 0.01 -
Components of Defined Benefit Cost recognized in Statement of Profit

and loss 0.17 0.14

Il) Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income:
Actuarial gain / (loss) (0.03) -
(0.03) -

IV) Included in Other Comprehensive Income
Amount recognized in OCI, Beginning of the period - -
Remeasurements due to:

Effect of Change In financial assumptions 0.01 -
Effect of experience adjustments 0.02 -
Total Remeasurements recognized in OCI 0.03 -
Amount recognized in OCI, End of the period 0.03 -

V) Net Liability recognized in the balance sheet
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -
Liability at the year end (0.33) (0.14)
Amount recognized in the balance sheet (0.33) (0.14)
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41 Related Party Disclosures

1 Related parties where control exists
Holding Company
SFC Environmental Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

2 Company having significant influence
SMC Infrastructures Private Limited

3 Key Managerial Personal

saketchandrasingh Pratapsingh Dhandoriya
Sarvesh Kumar Garg

Shivaji Dada Desai

Ameya Suhas Mehta (Appointed w.e.f 30.09.2023)

4 Disclosure of transactions between the Company a
balances as at year ending

Particulars

Transactions with related parties:

Purchase of Service & Material
SEC Environmental Technologies Private Limited

Purchase of Assets
SFC Environmental Technologies Private Limited

Loan Borrowed
SEC Environmental Technologies Private Limited

Interest on Loan
SFC Environmental Technologies Private Limited

Loan Repaid
SFC Environmental Technologies Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenses & Purchase of goods
SEC Environmental Technologies Private Limited

Director
Director
Director
Director

nd Related parties and the status of outstanding

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.78 525.78
15.34 24.15
83.80 138.10
54,15 52.57
394.97 7.53
- 0.00
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Balances outstanding as at the year end March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

purdiuiars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loan Payable

SEC Environmental Technologies Private Limited 369.89 632.33

Trade Payables

SFC Environmental Technologies Private Limited 3.08 187.44

Share Capital

SEC Environmental Technologies Private Limited 7.40 7.40

SMC Infrastructures Private Limited 2.60 2.60

Note:

- The information given above, has been reckoned on The basis of information available with The
Company and relied upon by The auditors.

- The transactions from related parties are made at terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions.

42 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) i.e. Board of Directors. The CODM regularly monitors and
reviews the operating result of the whole Company as one segment of "Construction and operations of
Plant for municipal solid waste". Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the Company’s
entire business falls under this one operational segment.
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Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN: U90000MH2014PTC255305

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions)

44 Risk management Framework

(A)

(B

—

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of of borrowings, lease liabilities, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade receivables, cash
and cash equivaients, other bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations. The Company is exposed preliminary to market
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets & seek to minimize potential adverse
effects on its financial performance.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: Foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. The Company's exposure to market risk is on account of foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with floating interest rates. The fixed rate
borrowings are carried at amortised cost, hence, they are not subject to interest rate risk since the carrying amount and future cash flows will not fluctuate
because of change in market interest rates. The exposure of the Company's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of reporting period are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Variable rate borrowings 432.54 -
Fixed rate borrowings 369.89 585.01
Total 802.43 585.01

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity toa reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings. With all other
variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Purtiliii In?rease‘f denfrease Effect on profit Effect on equity

in basis points after tax
For Year ended March 31, 2024
INR +100 0.08 0.08
INR -100 (0.08) (0.08)
For Year ended March 31, 2023 *
INR +100 0.00 0.00
INR -100 {0.00) {0.00)

ARepresents value less than Rs. 0.01 Mn.

(ii) Foreign currency risk
Forelgn currency risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company is not exposed to any foreign currency exchange risk as on balance sheet date, since, there are no foreign exchange transactions.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms and obligations. Credit risk
encompasses of bath, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by
analysing credit limits and credit worthiness of the customer on cantinuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for
credit, The financlal instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables and cash and bank equivalents.

To manage credit risk, the Company follows a policy of providing credit to its customers based on prevailing market credit terms. The credit limit poficy is
established considering the current economic trend of the industry in which the Company is operating. Also, the tradle receivables are monitored on a periodic
basis for assessing any significant risk of non-recoverability of dues and provision is created accordingly. These receivables are monitored ona periodic basis
for assessing any significant risk of non-recoverability of dues and provision is created accordingly.

The Company recognizes lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivable using simplified approach by computing the expected credit loss allowance for
trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision malrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking
information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in provision matrix. However, there is no
impact of ECL in the case of the company.




Vasudha Waste Treatment Private Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN: U90000MH2014PTC255305
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(C) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without Incurring unacceptable losses. The
company's objective is to maintain optimum levels of liquidity and to ensure that funds are available for use as per requirement.
The liquidity risk principally arises from obligations on account of financial liabilities viz. borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities.
The corporate finance department of the company is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related
to such risks are overseen by senior management.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the company’s financial liabilities:
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include contractual

interest payments and exclude the impa

ct of netting agreements.

As at March 31,2024 ‘Within 1 year 1to 3 years 3 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Short term borrowings 43398 - - - 433.98
Long Term borrowings - 128.23 12833 111.89 368.45
Trade payables 6.74 - - - 6.74
Lease liabilities 0.88 2.59 3.14 0.73 7.35
Other financial liabilities 2.60 - - - 2.60
444.20 130.83 131.46 112.62 819.12
As at March 31, 2023 Within 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Short term borrowings 150.01 - - - 15001
Long Term borrowings - 435.00 - - 435.00
Trade payables 189 30 0.01 0.01 - 18931
Lease liabilities 0.93 2.14 2.59 0.73 6.40
Other financial liabllities 48.07 - - - 43.07
388.31 437.15 2.60 0.73 828.80
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45 Secured Borrowing

The Company has entered into Term Loan facility from Axis Bank, for the purpase of repayment of unse

cured loan. Loan amount is Rs 450 Mn. @ Repo+ 2.25% for

period of 84 months from the date of disbursement. The said term loan is against primary sacurity of Hypothecation Of entire current assets (receivables) of the

borrower both present and future. Also, Hyp

Current
Non Current
TOTAL

46 Leases
As a Leasee

a The Company has entered into Finance Lease agreements asa lessee. Disclosure in respect of leases pursuant

pertaining to minimum lease rentals and the future minimum lease payments are as follows ¢
Right of Use Asset

Balance as at the beginning of the period
Additions during the current year
Deletions during the current year
Amortisation of ROU

Balance as at the end of the period

Lease Liabilities
Current

Non - Current
Total Lease Liability

Following are the car rying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023
Please refer note no. 6 for detailed presentation of fair value of right of use assets

o

¢ Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 is as follows:
Particulars

Decrease in lease rentals by
Increase in finance cost by
Increase in depreciation by
Net impact on profit/loss

Maturity analysis of lease |iabilities— contractual undiscounted cash flows:
d Particulars

Less than one year

One to three year

Three to five year

More than five year

Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at

Discounted lease liability included in the statement of financial position

e Thetotal cash outflow for leases for year ended March 31
General Description of leasing agreements:

Leasad Assets: Buildings
Future Lease rentals are determined on the basis of agreed terms.

othecation on the annuity receivables which will be routed through bank's escrow account. Disclosure in respect of
term loan pursuant to Indian Accounting Standards 109 on *Financial Instruments’ pertaining current and non current are as follows :

Year ended
March 31, 2024
64.09
368.45

432.54

to Indian Accounting standards 116 on ‘Leases’

- e

arch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 March3n2024 VeI

5.69 6.72
1.20 -
(1.07) (1.03)
5.82 5.69
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.88 0.93
6.46 5.47
7.35 6.40
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(1.50) (1.50)
0.74 0.66
1.07 1.03
0.32 0.19
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1.55 -
3.60 214
3.60 2.59
0.75 0.73
9.50 5.47
1.50 1.50

At the expiry of lease terms, the company has an option to return the assets or extend the term by giving notice in writing.

Lease agreements are generally cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed t

erms.
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48

49

50

Corporate social responsibility
The Company is not liahle to establish Carporate Social Responsibility {CSR) Committee as per Section 135 and schedule VIl of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility pPolicy) Rules 2014.

Capital management

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy
capital ratios in arder to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The company Manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to sharehelders, return capital to sharehaolders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or procesies during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March
31,2023.

The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is
calculated as loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The amount managed as capital by the company are summarised as fellows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Borrowings 202.43 58501
Lease Liability 7.35 6.40
Less: cash and cash equivalent (6.42) (12.10)
Net Debt 203 36 579.31
Total Equity 8530 52.65
Capital and Net debt BBB.66 631.95
Gear Ratio 0.90 0.92

The company's key objective in managing its financial structure is to maximize value for shareholders, reduce cost of capital,
while at the same time ensuring that the company has the financial flexibility required to continue its expansion.

Revenue from contracts with customers in case of Service Concession agreement

The Company, is engaged in the business of integrated waste management. The Company has entered into service concession
arrangement with governmentai authorities to Design, Build, Finance, Operate, Transfer (DBFOT) basis at facility at Cacora
South Goa District. The Goa Waste Management Corporation (GWMC) on 20 February 2020 granted the Company a concession
for a period of 10 years.

The Company will be paid for its services over the period of the service Concession arrangement at prices determined in the
concession arrangement.

For the above arrangement, the Company has a contractual right under the concession arrangements to receive a fixed and
determinable amount of payments during the concession period. Qver and above the fixed and determinable payments the
Company has a right to charge the governmental authorities for the services rendered in excess of minimum guarantee.

Service ConCession arrangement states the rights and

obligations for the Company as follows:

{a) to design, engineer, finance, construct, supply, install, commission, operale and maintain the plant;

(b) upon commissioning of the plant, to manage, operate and maintain the same;

(c) receive Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Trom GWMC (or a person authorized by GWMC) at the site;

(d) to inspect the MSW delivered by GWMC and identify and segregate-any non conforming waste and take and manage as per
the provisions of the agreement;

(e) to process MSW at the Plant;

(f) to undertake repair and maintenance of the plant for MSW processing and dispasal in accordance with the provisions of the
agreement

(h) to transfer the plant to GWMC at the end of the term or on termination, in accordance with the provisions of the
agreement; and )

(i) To borrow or raise maney or funding required for the due implementation of the project without mortgaging the sile;

The service concession arrangement has been accounted under financial assets model, The Company recognizes financial asset
arising from service concession arrangement to the extent it has an unconditional contractual right to receive payment.
Financial assets are initially recognized at their fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition

- Financial assets are recognized at amortized cost
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51 Others
{) The Company has not revalued any property, plant & equipment nar any intangible assets.

ii) The Company does not have any Benami propertys where any proc seding has been initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any Benami property-

jii) The Company does not hold any intangible assets under development and accordingly, o ageing nor completion schedule is

provided.

jv) The Company has utilised borrowings from banks or financial institutions for the purpose for which it was obtained.

v) The Compaiy has not been declared wilful defaulter by any pank or financial institution or government or any government

authority.
vi) The Company does not haveany transactions with struck off companies.

vii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction whit h is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

viii) The Company has no such transac tion which is not recorded in the baoks of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclnsad as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1951 such as, search or survey or any
other refevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers p:ezcribed under clause (87) of ser tion 2 of the Act read with the
Cormpanies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

x) The Company has not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

xi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other peuon(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Iulemnedimies) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons of
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Uitimate geneficiaries) or (b) provide any
guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Benefic iaries.

xii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guaranteg, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

52 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reciassified to confirm presentation as per Ind AS as required by Schedule Il of the
Act.

As per our report of even date
For G B C A & Associales LLP for and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 103142W /W100232
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